GENERAL REPORT OF THE JOINT LEGISLATIVE COUNCIL TO THE 2019-20 LEGISLATURE



Alcohol Beverages Enforcement

Bail and Conditions of Pretrial Release

Child Placement and Support

Direct Primary Care

Identification and Management of Dyslexia

Investment and Use of the School Trust Funds

Law Revision Committee

Minor Guardianships

Property Tax Assessment Practices

State-Tribal Relations

Use of Police Body Cameras

Wisconsin Legislative Council One East Main Street, Suite 401 Madison, Wisconsin July 2020



STATE OF WISCONSIN

JOINT LEGISLATIVE COUNCIL

July 2020

To the Honorable Governor Tony Evers and Members of the 2019-20 Wisconsin Legislature:

We are pleased to submit this **General Report** of the Joint Legislative Council. This General Report summarizes the work of the Joint Legislative Council and its committees during the period from July 1, 2018 to June 30, 2020. These committees were established to examine issues and problems identified by the Joint Legislative Council or referred to the Joint Legislative Council.

Sincerely,

Senator Roger Roth, Co-Chair Joint Legislative Council Representative Robert Brooks, Co-Chair Joint Legislative Council

STATE OF WISCONSIN JOINT LEGISLATIVE COUNCIL

GENERAL REPORT

OF THE

JOINT LEGISLATIVE COUNCIL

TO THE

2019-20 LEGISLATURE

JULY 2020

JOINT LEGISLATIVE COUNCIL

[Joint Legislative Council Members Who Received Final Committee Reports]
[S. 13.81, Stats.]

SENATE MEMBERS	ASSEMBLY MEMBERS
Roger Roth, Co-Chair Senate President Appleton	Robert Brooks, Co-Chair Saukville
Alberta Darling JFC Co-Chair River Hills	Tyler August Speaker Pro Tempore Lake Geneva
Jon Erpenbach JFC Ranking Minority Middleton	Joan Ballweg Markesan
Scott Fitzgerald Majority Leader Juneau	Jill Billings La Crosse
Andrè Jacque DePere	Dianne Hesselbein Assistant Minority Leader Middleton
Howard Marklein President Pro Tempore Spring Green	Gordon Hintz Minority Leader Oshkosh
Mark Miller Monona	John Nygren JFC Co-Chair Marinette
Luther Olsen Ripon	John Spiros Marshfield
Jerry Petrowski Marathon	Jim Steineke Majority Leader Kaukauna
Fred A. Risser Madison	Chris Taylor JFC Ranking Minority Madison

Jennifer ShillingRobin VosMinority LeaderSpeakerLa CrosseRochester

This 22-member committee consists of the majority and minority party leadership of both houses of the Legislature, the co-chairs and ranking minority members of the Joint Committee on Finance, and 5 Senators and 5 Representatives appointed as are members of standing committees.

LEGISLATIVE COUNCIL STAFF

Anne Sappenfield **Director**

Rachel Letzing and Dan Schmidt **Deputy Directors**

Principal Attorney

Scott Grosz

Senior Staff Attorneys	Staff Attorneys	Staff Analyst
Katie Bender-Olson	Andrea Brauer	Ben Kranner
Anna Henning	Parker Conover	
Margit Kelley	Emily Hicks	
Brian Larson	Peggy Hurley	
Steve McCarthy	Tom Koss	
David Moore	Ethan Lauer	
Michael Queensland	Amber Otis	
Melissa Schmidt		

Administrative Services

Miranda Acosta, Administrative Assistant Julie Learned, Senior Administrative Assistant Kelly Mautz, Executive Assistant to the Director Anglinia Washington, Finance Officer Tracey Young, Senior Administrative Assistant

PREFACE

The Joint Legislative Council General Report to the 2019-20 Legislature is prepared pursuant to s. 13.81 (3), Stats. The report summarizes the work of the Joint Legislative Council from July 1, 2018 to June 30, 2020, and the work of the statutory and study committees established by the council that reported to the Joint Legislative Council.

The Joint Legislative Council continued two statutory committees and established nine study committees to conduct various studies and to make reports to the 2019-20 Legislature. [See list on page 1 of Part I.]

As of June 30, 2018, the following 10 reports containing the study committee recommendations were submitted to the 2019-20 Legislature. These reports are listed below. Copies may be obtained from the Legislative Council staff office or website (http://www.legis.wisconsin.gov/lc).

LCR 2019-01	Study Committee on Minor Guardianships
LCR 2019-02	Study Committee on the Use of Police Body Cameras
LCR 2019-03	Study Committee on Direct Primary Care
LCR 2019-04	Study Committee on the Investment and Use of the School Trust Funds
LCR 2019-05	Study Committee on the Identification and Management of Dyslexia
LCR 2019-06	Special Committee on State-Tribal Relations
LCR 2019-07	Study Committee on Property Tax Assessment Practices
LCR 2019-08	Study Committee on Alcohol Beverages Enforcement
LCR 2019-09	Study Committee on Bail and Conditions of Pretrial Release
LCR 2019-10	Study Committee on Child Placement and Support

The Law Revision Committee does not report to the Joint Legislative Council; rather, it introduces its legislation separately.

This General Report is organized into the following parts:

Part I describes the Joint Legislative Council and, particularly, the activities of the 2018-19 council.

Part II contains a list of, and briefly describes the work of, each of the council's committees, as well as the Joint Legislative Council and legislative actions on the committee recommendations.

The Appendix lists the members of the study committees that were established during the period covered by this report.

Complete information on each study committee from the 2018 interim, and previous interims, are available at the Legislative Council staff's website: http://www.legis.wisconsin.gov/lc.

TABLE OF CONTENTS

<u>Page</u>
PART I WORK OF THE JOINT LEGISLATIVE COUNCIL
Council Study Committees
Organization and Activities of the Joint Legislative Council
Operation of Legislative Council Staff 2
PART II - JOINT LEGISLATIVE COUNCIL COMMITTEES
Alcohol Beverages Enforcement
Bail and Conditions of Pretrial Release
Child Placement and Support
Direct Primary Care
Identification and Management of Dyslexia
Investment and Use of the School Trust Funds
Law Revision Committee
Minor Guardianships
Property Tax Assessment Practices
State-Tribal Relations
Use of Police Body Cameras
APPENDIX – COMMITTEE MEMBERSHIP LISTS

PART I

Work of the 2019-20 Joint Legislative Council

WORK OF THE 2019-20 JOINT LEGISLATIVE COUNCIL

The Joint Legislative Council held two meetings between January 1, 2019 and June 30, 2020 (the period covered by this report), on the following dates:

- February 13, 2019
- March 6, 2019

The proposals introduced by the Joint Legislative Council and the Law Revision Committee are discussed in Part II of this report.

Council Study Committees

During the period covered by this report, two statutory study committees met, and nine study committees were established to report to the 2019-20 Joint Legislative Council.

The statutory committees were:

- Law Revision Committee
- State-Tribal Relations

The study committees were:

- Alcohol Beverages Enforcement
- Bail and Conditions of Pretrial Release
- Child Placement and Support
- Direct Primary Care
- Identification and Management of Dyslexia
- Investment and Use of the School Trust Funds
- Minor Guardianships
- Property Tax Assessment Practices
- Use of Police Body Cameras

Organization and Activities of the Joint Legislative Council

Twenty-two legislators serve on the Joint Legislative Council: 11 from the Senate; and 11 from the Assembly. Twelve of these members are *ex officio* and serve on the Council because of their positions as legislative leaders. These members are: the speaker of the Assembly; the president of the Senate; the speaker pro tempore of the Assembly; president pro tempore of the Senate; the majority and minority leaders of the Assembly and Senate; the two co-chairs of the Joint Committee on Finance (JCF); and the ranking minority member of JCF from each house. The other 10 members are appointed in the same manner as members of standing committees are appointed: five are appointed by the chair of the Senate Committee on Organization; and five by the speaker of the Assembly. [s. 13.81 (1), Stats.]

The Joint Legislative Council establishes study committees during the recess periods of the Legislature. The council determines which studies will be conducted and establishes committees to review, study, and propose recommendations. These studies generally are of four types:

- Intensive examination of problems that are expected to confront a succeeding Legislature.
- Review of controversial subjects that were unresolved by the previous Legislature.
- Major codifications and revisions of portions of the law.

• Methods of improving the operation and effectiveness of state agencies.

There are two continuing council committees currently required by statute: the Special Committee on State-Tribal Relations; and the Law Revision Committee. [s. 13.83, Stats.]

Each committee submits a report to the Joint Legislative Council. In almost all cases, the report makes recommendations for legislative changes based upon its study. The council reviews the recommendations for legislation and introduces those approved by a majority of the membership of the council (12 votes).

Operation of Legislative Council Staff

The Joint Legislative Council and the council's study committees are staffed by a nonpartisan legislative service agency. The Legislative Council staff serves in the unclassified service. As of June 30, 2020, the council staff included, in addition to the Director, 17 attorneys, two analysts, and five administrative staff.

The basic duties of the staff include:

Services for the council and its committees. The Legislative Council staff provides services for the Joint Legislative Council and its study committees.

Services for legislative committees. The Legislative Council staff provides nonpartisan legal analysis and policy research for standing committees and their subcommittees, select or special committees of the Legislature, and a number of joint statutory committees. The Legislative Council staff serves as the secretariat for the Joint Committee on Legislative Organization and for the Joint Committee on Employment Relations.

Services for individual legislators. Upon request, the Legislative Council staff provides legal analysis and other research to individual legislators.

Administrative Rules Clearinghouse. Prior to any public hearing on a proposed rule, or prior to notification of the chief clerks if no hearing is required, the agency proposing the rule must submit the proposed rule to the Legislative Council staff for review. The Legislative Council staff is required to review the rule for various technical requirements, such as statutory authority for promulgation of the rule and the form and clarity of the rule and issue a clearinghouse report with its comments on the rule. The Legislative Council staff also works with and assists the appropriate standing committees throughout the rule-making process. For additional information, see the Clearinghouse's 2019 Annual Report to the Legislature, which is available at http://www.legis.wisconsin.gov/lc. [See s. 227.15, Stats.]

Services to the public. The Legislative Council staff is available to answer questions from members of the general public and from research agencies and legislators of other states. Information about the Legislative Council staff, as well as publications prepared by the staff, is available at http://www.legis.wisconsin.gov/lc.

PART II

JOINT LEGISLATIVE COUNCIL COMMITTEES

ALCOHOL BEVERAGES ENFORCEMENT

[A summary of the study committee's meetings, materials, and membership, and the final report for the study committee, are available at http://www.legis.wisconsin.gov/lc/.]

Summary of Committee Activity

The Joint Legislative Council established the Study Committee on Alcohol Beverages Enforcement and appointed the chairperson by an April 9, 2018 mail ballot. The committee's assignment was the following:

...review the structure and staffing of the Department of Revenue's efforts to enforce Wisconsin's alcohol beverage laws found in ch. 125, Stats., and compare the regulatory and enforcement structure of alcohol law enforcement efforts in other states. The committee shall further examine whether establishments and venues that serve alcohol are properly licensed to do so. The committee may recommend legislation that ensures the proper enforcement of alcohol beverage laws, including increased clarity and education.

Membership of the study committee was appointed by a June 4, 2018 mail ballot. Final committee membership consisted of two Senators, two Representatives, and 11 public members. A list of the committee membership can be found in the **Appendix** to this report.

The study committee held four meetings on the following dates:

July 25, 2018 August 22, 2018 September 26, 2018 November 28, 2018

Actions of the Joint Legislative Council

At its March 6, 2019 meeting, the Joint Legislative Council voted to introduce the following legislation:

- 2019 Assembly Bill 91, relating to requiring reports by common carriers shipping alcohol beverages into this state and providing a penalty.
- 2019 Assembly Bill 92, relating to enforcement of alcohol beverage laws against out-of-state alcohol beverage shippers and direct wine shippers.

Actions of the Legislature

The recommendations of the committee failed to be enacted during the 2019-20 Legislative Session.

BAIL AND CONDITIONS OF PRETRIAL RELEASE

[A summary of the study committee's meetings, materials, and membership, and the final report for the study committee, are available at http://www.legis.wisconsin.gov/lc/.]

Summary of Committee Activity

The Joint Legislative Council established the Study Committee on Bail and Conditions of Pretrial Release and appointed the chairperson by an April 9, 2018 mail ballot. The committee's assignment was the following:

...review Wisconsin's pretrial release system, including considerations for courts in imposing monetary bail and for denying pretrial release. The committee shall review relevant Wisconsin constitutional and statutory provisions and best practices implemented by Wisconsin counties and other states, including use of risk assessment tools for informing pretrial detention decisions. The committee is directed to recommend legislation regarding bail and pretrial release that enhances public safety, respects constitutional rights of the accused, considers costs to local governments, and incorporates evidence-based strategies.

Membership of the study committee, appointed by a June 4, 2018 mail ballot, consisted of two Senators, three Representatives, and nine public members. Final committee membership can be found in the **Appendix** to this report.

The study committee held six meetings on the following dates:

August 16, 2018 September 17, 2018 October 16, 2018 November 13, 2018 December 11, 2018 January 29, 2019

Actions of the Joint Legislative Council

At its March 6, 2019 meeting, the Joint Legislative Council voted to introduce:

- 2019 Senate Joint Resolution 13, relating to release of a person accused of a crime prior to conviction (first consideration).
- 2019 Senate Bill 98, relating to modification of bail in a criminal action.
- 2019 Senate Bill 99, relating to pretrial detention.
- 2019 Senate Bill 101, relating to the use of a pretrial risk assessment when setting conditions for pretrial release.

Actions of the Legislature

The recommendations of the committee failed to be enacted during the 2019-20 Legislative Session.

CHILD PLACEMENT AND SUPPORT

[A summary of the study committee's meetings, materials, and membership, and the final report for the study committee, are available at http://www.legis.wisconsin.gov/lc/.]

Summary of Committee Activity

The Joint Legislative Council established the Study Committee on Child Placement and Support and appointed the chairperson by an April 9, 2018 mail ballot. The committee's assignment was the following:

...review the standards under current law for determining periods of physical placement and child support obligations. The committee may consider alternatives to current law concerning physical placement, including a rebuttable presumption that equal placement is in the child's best interest. The committee may also consider whether the current standard for determining child support adequately and equitably provides for the support of children and alternative models for determining child support obligations.

Membership of the study committee was appointed by a June 4, 2018 mail ballot. Final committee membership consisted of two Senators, three Representatives, and eight public members. A list of the final committee membership can be found in the **Appendix** to this report.

The study committee held five meetings on the following dates:

August 28, 2018 September 25, 2018 October 23, 2018 November 20, 2018 February 11, 2019

Actions of the Joint Legislative Council

At its March 6, 2019 meeting, the Joint Legislative Council voted to introduce the following legislation:

- Petition to amend Supreme Court Rule 35.015 (intro.) and (1), relating to qualifications for appointment as a guardian ad litem in an action affecting the family.
- 2019 Assembly Bill 93, relating to a Uniform Deployed Parents Custody and Visitation Act.
- 2019 Assembly Bill 94, relating to reduction of child support payments during incarceration.
- 2019 Assembly Bill 95, relating to modifications to legal custody or physical placement contingent upon a future event.
- 2019 Assembly Bill 96, relating to calculating the child support obligation.
- 2019 Assembly Bill 97, relating to the involvement and cooperation of both parents in a physical placement schedule.
- 2019 Assembly Bill 98, relating to factors relating to the physical placement of a child.
- 2019 Assembly Bill 99, relating to proposed parenting plans in certain actions affecting the family.

- 2019 Assembly Bill 100, relating to judicial notice of certain court records relating to domestic violence or child abuse.
- 2019 Assembly Bill 101, relating to elimination of family support.
- 2019 Assembly Bill 102, relating to exclusion of certain military allowances in determining gross income for purposes of child support.
- 2019 Assembly Bill 103, relating to eliminating administrative rule limitation on recovery of birth costs. [2019 Senate Bill 350 is the companion bill.]

Actions of the Legislature

The recommendations of the committee failed to be enacted during the 2019-20 Legislative Session.

DIRECT PRIMARY CARE

[A summary of the study committee's meetings, materials, and membership, and the final report for the study committee, are available at http://www.legis.wisconsin.gov/lc/.]

Summary of Committee Activity

The Joint Legislative Council established the Study Committee on Direct Primary Care and appointed the chairperson by an April 9, 2018 mail ballot. The committee's assignment was the following:

...review the emergence of "direct primary care" as a healthcare delivery option and assess its potential impact on the healthcare delivery system and health outcomes in the state. The committee shall recommend legislation regarding requirements for direct primary care arrangements in the private market. In addition, the committee is directed to review options for incorporation of direct primary care arrangements into the fee-for-service and managed-care parts of the Medical Assistance (MA) program and assess its potential impact on the functionality, efficiency, and effectiveness of service delivery and health outcomes in both parts of the MA program. The committee shall recommend legislation regarding a direct primary care pilot in the MA program, including an evaluation of the impact of the pilot on service delivery and health outcomes for participating individuals and the MA program as a whole.

Membership of the study committee, appointed by a June 4, 2018 mail ballot, consisted of three Senators, three Representatives, and eight public members. A list of the committee membership can be found in the **Appendix** to this report.

The study committee held three meetings on the following dates:

July 24, 2018 August 29, 2018 September 18, 2018

Actions of the Joint Legislative Council

The chairperson permanently adjourned the study committee. The study committee made two non-legislative recommendations to the Joint Legislative Council: (1) value of direct primary care model; and (2) direct primary care state employee health plan pilot.

The Joint Legislative Council received the final report of the study committee at its February 13, 2019 meeting.

IDENTIFICATION AND MANAGEMENT OF DYSLEXIA

[A summary of the study committee's meetings, materials, and membership, and the final report for the study committee, are available at http://www.legis.wisconsin.gov/lc/.]

Summary of Committee Activity

The Joint Legislative Council established the Study Committee on the Identification and Management of Dyslexia and appointed the chairperson by an April 9, 2018 mail ballot. The committee's assignment was the following:

...review current screening, identification, school intervention, and treatment protocols for dyslexia in K-12 schools; to examine the effects of current state statutes and regulations on literacy outcomes for students with dyslexia; and to evaluate the effects of dyslexia on literacy outcomes in the state. The committee shall study recent research on evidence-based instructional techniques for students with dyslexia; determine the components and costs of successful dyslexia education practices and laws in other states; and identify institutional obstacles to academic attainment for these students. The committee shall consider legislation to implement screening for characteristics of dyslexia in early grades; to ensure that reading instruction and intervention practices incorporate relevant research findings from the University of Wisconsin; to improve the partnership between parents, educators, counselors, and others on early identification and effective interventions for dyslexic learners; and to enhance statewide access to updated resources and training on dyslexic education.

Membership of the study committee, appointed by June 4 and June 28, 2018 mail ballots, consisted of two Senators, three Representatives, and six public members. A list of the committee membership can be found in the **Appendix** to this report.

The study committee held five meetings on the following dates:

July 9, 2018 August 29, 2018 September 18, 2018 October 23, 2018 December 4, 2018

Actions of the Joint Legislative Council

At its February 13, 2019 meeting, the Joint Legislative Council voted to introduce:

- 2019 Assembly Bill 50, relating to employing a dyslexia specialist at the Department of Public Instruction and making an appropriation.
- 2019 Assembly Bill 110, relating to developing a guidebook related to dyslexia and related conditions.

Actions of the Legislature

2019 Assembly Bill 110 became 2019 Wisconsin Act 86 during the 2019-20 Legislative Session. Copies of the act, and a memorandum describing the act are available at: http://www.legis.wisconsin.gov/lc.

INVESTMENT AND USE OF THE SCHOOL TRUST FUNDS

[A summary of the study committee's meetings, materials, and membership, and the final report for the study committee, are available at http://www.legis.wisconsin.gov/lc/.]

Summary of Committee Activity

The Joint Legislative Council established the Study Committee on the Investment and Use of the School Trust Funds and appointed the chairperson by an April 9, 2018 mail ballot. The committee's assignment was the following:

...review the statutes governing the investment of the trust funds administered by the Board of Commissioners of Public Lands (BCPL), including the loan programs administered by BCPL. The committee shall assess whether current statutes adequately ensure the effective investment and appropriate use of the proceeds of the funds, and recommend legislation for necessary changes.

Membership of the study committee, appointed by a June 4, 2018 mail ballot, consisted of two Senators, two Representatives, and five public members. A list of the committee membership can be found in the **Appendix** to this report.

The study committee held five meetings on the following dates:

August 16, 2018 September 5, 2018 October 11, 2018 November 14, 2018 December 6, 2018

Actions of the Joint Legislative Council

At its February 13, 2019 meeting, the Joint Legislative Council voted to introduce:

- 2019 Assembly Bill 48, relating to promissory notes of certain public bodies.
- 2019 Assembly Bill 49, relating to the authority of the Board of Commissioners of Public Lands to delegate authority to invest trust fund moneys and making an appropriation.

Actions of the Legislature

2019 Assembly Bill 49 became 2019 Wisconsin Act 110 during the 2019-20 Legislative Session. Copies of the act, and a memorandum describing the act are available at: http://www.legis.wisconsin.gov/lc.

LAW REVISION COMMITTEE

[A summary of the committee's meetings, materials, and membership are available at http://www.legis.wisconsin.gov/lc/.]

Summary of Committee Activity

The Law Revision Committee was first created by the Legislative Council at its May 30, 1980 meeting, as a statutory committee of the Council, pursuant to s. 13.83 (1), Stats., as created by Ch. 204, Laws of 1979. The membership of the committee is to be appointed in "each biennium." Members were most recently appointed on April 24, 2019. The membership of the committee consisted of four Senators and four Representatives. A list of the committee membership can be found in the **Appendix** to this report.

The statute directs the committee to:

- 1. Review remedial legislation based on non-substantive changes recommended by agencies;
- 2. Review court decisions and opinions of the Attorney General which state that a statute is unconstitutional, ambiguous, or otherwise in need of revision; and
- 3. Review correction bills and minor substantive revision bills prepared by the Legislative Reference Bureau.

The committee is also directed to introduce the bills prepared on these subjects directly, not through the Council, into the Legislature.

The committee's activity for the period covered by this report is summarized below.

During the period covered by this report, the committee held two meetings on the following dates:

January 16, 2020 January 29, 2020

Remedial Legislation and Correction Bills

LAW REVISION COMMITTEE Summary of 2019 Legislative Action

Bill Number	Recommended by	Subject Matter	Status
Remedial Legisla	ation		
A.B. 879/S.B. 800	Director of State Courts	records retained by circuit courts	Failedtopass pursuanttoSJR
A.B. 880/S.B. 802	Employee Trust Funds	named various changes to the Wisconsin Retirement System	Failedtopass pursuanttoSJR
A.B. 881/S.B. 803	Revenue	repealing obsolete statutory references in and making other changes to various tax laws	Failedtopass pursuanttoSJR
A.B. 882/S.B. 804	Transportation	Department of Tourism's reporting duties and requirement to distribute cheese	Failed to pass pursuant to SJR

Bill Number	Recommended by	Subject Matter	Status
			1
A.B. 883/S.B. 805	Children and Families	the exclusion of certain amounts from the calculation of income for purposes of Wisconsin Works eligibility and sources of funding for the Brighter Futures Initiative	Failed to pass pursuant to SJR
A.B. 884/S.B. 806	Safety and Professional Services	incorporation of standards by reference into agency administrative rules and various changes to laws administered or enforced by the Department of Safety and Professional Services and credentialing boards	Failedtopass pursuanttoSJR 1
A.B. 885/S.B. 807	Administration	the intermodal freight assistance program and a grant to the Incourage Community Foundation for the construction of an economic development and community hub	Failedtopass pursuanttoSJR 1
A.B. 893/S.B. 801	South eastern Fox Riv er Commission	the composition of the Southeastern Wisconsin Fox River Commission	Failedtopass pursuanttoSJR 1
Correction Bills			
A.B. 877/S.B. 798		revising various provisions of the statutes for the purpose of making corrections and reconciling conflicts	Failed to pass pursuant to SJR
A.B. 878/S.B. 799		revising various provisions of the statutes for the purpose of making corrections and reconciling conflicts	Failed to pass pursuant to SJR

MINOR GUARDIANSHIPS

[A summary of the study committee's meetings, materials, and membership, and the final report for the study committee, are available at http://www.legis.wisconsin.gov/lc/.]

Summary of Committee Activity

The Joint Legislative Council established the Study Committee on Minor Guardianships and appointed the chairperson by an April 9, 2018 mail ballot. The committee's assignment was the following:

...examine ch. 54, Stats., concerning guardianship of minors and adults, and recommend legislation that creates procedures specific to guardianship of a minor. The committee may consider whether any new provisions should apply to guardianship of a minor's person, estate, or both.

Membership of the study committee, appointed by a June 4, 2018 mail ballot, consisted of one Senator, three Representatives, and seven public members. A list of the committee membership can be found in the **Appendix** to this report.

The study committee held four meetings on the following dates:

July 24, 2018 August 28, 2018 October 23, 2018 November 29, 2018

Actions of the Joint Legislative Council

At its February 13, 2019 meeting, the Joint Legislative Council voted to introduce:

• 2019 Assembly Bill 47, relating to guardianships of children.

Actions of the Legislature

2019 Assembly Bill 47 became 2019 Wisconsin Act 109 during the 2019-20 Legislative Session. Copies of the act, and a memorandum describing the act are available at: http://www.legis.wisconsin.gov/lc.

PROPERTY TAX ASSESSMENT PRACTICES

[A summary of the study committee's meetings, materials, and membership, and the final report for the study committee, are available at http://www.legis.wisconsin.gov/lc/.]

Summary of Committee Activity

The Joint Legislative Council established the Study Committee on Property Tax Assessment Practices and appointed the chairperson by an April 9, 2018 mail ballot. The committee's assignment was the following:

...review current property tax assessment practices, including the review of statutory, administrative, and judicial directives on assessment practices and the consistency of assessment practices throughout the state. Following its review, the committee shall recommend legislation to revise and clarify property tax assessment practices, including recommendations regarding the role of comparable sales and market segments in assessments and the assessment of leased property.

Membership of the study committee, appointed by a June 4, 2018 mail ballot, consisted of three Senators, three Representatives, and six public members. A list of the committee membership can be found in the **Appendix** to this report.

The study committee held five meetings on the following dates:

August 7, 2018 September 6, 2018 October 9, 2018 December 11, 2018 January 9, 2019

Actions of the Joint Legislative Council

At its March 6, 2019 meeting, the Joint Legislative Council voted to introduce:

- 2019 Senate Bill 95, relating to cost-sharing assistance for property tax assessments.
- 2019 Senate Bill 96, relating to actions for excessive property tax assessments.
- 2019 Senate Bill 97, relating to the submission of information for commercial property tax assessments.

Actions of the Legislature

The recommendations of the committee failed to be enacted during the 2019-20 Legislative Session.

STATE-TRIBAL RELATIONS

[A summary of the special committee's meetings, materials, and membership, and the final report for the special committee, are available at http://www.legis.wisconsin.gov/lc/.]

Summary of Committee Activity

The Special Committee on State-Tribal Relations is a permanent committee of the Joint Legislative Council established under s. 13.83 (3), Stats. The committee is directed by statute to study issues related to American Indians and the American Indian tribes and bands in this state and develop specific recommendations and legislative proposals relating to these issues.

The membership of the committee, appointed by the Joint Legislative Council, consists of not fewer than six nor more than 12 legislator members of the Senate and Assembly, including at least one member of the majority party and at least one member of the minority party from each house, and not fewer than six nor more than 11 members selected from names submitted by the federally recognized American Indian tribes and bands in this state (tribes) or the Great Lakes Inter-Tribal Council (GLITC), including not more than one member based on the recommendation of any tribe or GLITC. The committee is assisted by a Technical Advisory Committee (TAC) composed of a representative of each of the following state departments: Children and Families; Health Services; Justice; Natural Resources; Public Instruction; Revenue; Transportation; and Workforce Development. A list of the committee membership and the TAC membership can be found in the **Appendix** to this report.

The special committee held four meetings on the following dates:

September 20, 2018 October 10, 2018 November 15, 2018 December 13, 2018

Actions of the Joint Legislative Council

At its March 6, 2019 meeting, the Joint Legislative Council voted to introduce the following legislation:

- 2019 Assembly Bill 104, relating to battery or threat to an officer of the court in a tribal proceeding and providing a penalty.
- 2019 Assembly Bill 105, relating to model academic standards for American Indian studies.
- 2019 Assembly Bill 106, relating to informational materials related to a school board's obligation to provide instruction on American Indians.
- 2019 Assembly Bill 107, relating to the American Indian studies requirement for teacher licensure.
- 2019 Assembly Bill 108, relating to requiring private schools participating in a parental choice program and independent charter schools to provide instruction in American Indian history, culture, and tribal sovereignty.
- 2019 Assembly Bill 109, relating to required instruction in American Indian studies in the elementary and high school grades.

Actions of the Legislature

The recommendations of the committee failed to be enacted during the 2019-20 Legislative Session.

USE OF POLICE BODY CAMERAS

[A summary of the study committee's meetings, materials, and membership, and the final report for the study committee, are available at http://www.legis.wisconsin.gov/lc/.]

Summary of Committee Activity

The Joint Legislative Council established the Study Committee on the Use of Police Body Cameras and appointed the chairperson by an April 9, 2018 mail ballot. The committee's assignment was the following:

...review law enforcement policies regarding the use of body cameras and recommend legislation to establish uniform procedures regarding the retention and release of body camera video for state and local law enforcement agencies.

Membership of the study committee, appointed by a June 4, 2018 mail ballot, consisted of two Senators, two Representatives, and six public members. A list of the committee membership can be found in the **Appendix** to this report.

The study committee held four meetings on the following dates:

July 26, 2018 September 13, 2018 October 17, 2018 November 13, 2018

Actions of the Joint Legislative Council

At its February 13, 2019 meeting, the Joint Legislative Council voted to introduce:

• 2019 Senate Bill 50, relating to body cameras on law enforcement officers. [2019 Assembly Bill 964 is the companion bill.]

Actions of the Legislature

2019 Senate Bill 50 became 2019 Wisconsin Act 108 during the 2019-20 Legislative Session. Copies of the act, and a memorandum describing the act are available at: http://www.legis.wisconsin.gov/lc.

APPENDIX

COMMITTEE MEMBERSHIP LISTS

Legislative Council Study Committee on Alcohol Beverages Enforcement

Chair Rob Swearingen, Representative 4485 Oakview Ln.

Rhinelander, WI 54501

Joe Bartolotta, President/Co-Owner

The Bartolotta Restaurants 520 West McKinley Ave. Milwaukee, WI 53212

Angie Bowe, President

Park Ridge Distributing 1245 Continental Dr. Eau Claire, WI 54701

William Glass, President

The Brewing Projekt 1807 N. Oxford Ave. Eau Claire, WI 547 03

LaTonya Johnson, Senator

2363 N. 54th St. Milwaukee, WI 53707

Paul Lucas

N51 W28485 Mae's Walke Pewaukee, WI 53072

Pete Madland, Executive Director

Tavern League of Wisconsin 2817 Fish Hatchery Road Fitchburg, WI 53713

JoCasta Zamarripa, Representative

1645 South 12th St. Milwaukee, WI 53204 Vice Chair Daniel Feyen, Senator

Fond du Lac, WI 54936

Sarah Botham, President/Founder

Botham, INK 305 East Main St. Mount Horeb, WI 53572

Andrew Bowman, President

Stop-N-Go of Madison, Inc. 2934 Fish Hatchery Rd. Madison, WI 53713-3175

Evan Hughes, President

Central Standard Craft Distillery 613 South 2nd St., #609 Milwaukee, WI 53204

Roger Johnson

1229 Sunset Circle Prairie du Sac, WI 53578

John Macy, Attorney

Municipal Law & Litigation Group 730 N. Grand Ave. Waukesha, WI 53186

Mike Wittenwyler, Attorney

Godfrey & Kahn S.C.
One East Main Street, Suite 500
P.O. Box 2719
Madison, WI 53701-2719

STUDY ASSIGNMENT: The study committee is directed to review the structure and staffing of the Department of Revenue's efforts to enforce Wisconsin's alcohol beverage laws found in ch. 125, Stats., and compare the regulatory and enforcement structure of alcohol law enforcement efforts in other states. The committee shall further examine whether establishments and venues that serve alcohol are properly licensed to do so. The committee may recommend legislation that ensures the proper enforcement of alcohol beverage laws, including increased clarity and education.

15 MEMBERS: 2 Representatives; 2 Senators; and 11 Public Members.

<u>LEGISLATIVE COUNCIL STAFF</u>: Melissa Schmidt and Mike Queensland, Senior Staff Attorneys; and Kelly Mautz, Support Staff.

Legislative Council Study Committee on Bail and Conditions of Pretrial Release

Chair Van Wanggaard, Senator

1246 Blaine Ave. Racine, WI 53405

Jennifer Dorow, Chief Judge District 3 Waukesha County Circuit Court Branch 2

Courthouse, Room C267 515 W. Moreland Blvd. Waukesha, WI 53188

 ${\bf Adam\ Gerol}, {\bf District\ Attorney}, {\bf Ozaukee\ County}$

1201 Spring St., Box 994 Port Washington, WI 53074

Scott Horne, Judge

La Crosse County Circuit Court Branch 4 333 Vine St.

La Crosse, WI 54601-3296

Jane Klekamp, Assoc. County Admin.

La Crosse County 212 6th Street North, Ste. 2400 La Crosse, WI 54601

Kelli Thompson, State Public Defender

Office of the State Public Defender 315 N. Henry St.

Madison, WI 53703

Paul Susienka, Sheriff

Bay field County Sheriff's Department

615 2nd Ave.

East Washburn, WI 54891

Vice Chair Fred A. Risser, Senator

100 Wisconsin Ave., Unit 501

Madison, WI 53703

Cindi Duchow, Representative

N22 W 28692 Louis Ave. Pewaukee, WI 53072

Evan Goyke, Representative

2734W. State St.

Milwaukee, WI 53208

Gary King, District Attorney

Eau Claire Government Center – 2nd Floor

7 21 Oxford Ave., Ste. 2570 Eau Claire, WI 54703

Lau Claire, WI 54/03

Joseph McCleer, Attorney

McCleer Law Office, LLC 1127 S. Main St.

Oshkosh, WI 54902

Ron Tusler, Representative

W5721 Firelane 12 Harrison, WI 54952

Maxine White, Chief Judge Milwaukee County Circuit Court 901 N. 9th St., Room 609 Milwaukee, WI 53233-1425

<u>STUDY ASSIGNMENT</u>: The study committee is directed to review Wisconsin's pretrial release system, including considerations for courts in imposing monetary bail and for denying pretrial release. The committee shall review relevant Wisconsin constitutional and statutory provisions and best practices implemented by Wisconsin counties and other states, including use of risk assessment tools for informing pretrial detention decisions. The committee is directed to recommend legislation regarding bail and pretrial release that enhances public safety, respects constitutional rights of the accused, considers costs to local governments, and incorporates evidence-based strategies.

14 MEMBERS: 3 Representatives; 2 Senators; and 9 Public Members.

<u>LEGISLATIVE COUNCIL STAFF</u>: Katie Bender-Olson and David Moore, Senior Staff Attorneys; and Tracey Young, Support Staff.

Legislative Council Study Committee on Child Placement and Support

Chair Robert Brooks, Representative

204 E. Dekora St. Saukville, WI 53080

Maureen Atwell, Director

Waukesha County Child Support Division 515 W. Morsland Blvd. Waukesha, WI 53188

Janel Brandtjen, Representative

N52 W16632 Oak Ridge Trail Menomonee Falls, WI 53051

Jenna Gormal, Crisis Intervention Coordinator

DAIS

2102 Fordem Avenue Madison, WI 53704

Benjam in Kain

907 E. Florida Ave. Appleton, WI 54911

Amanda Stuck, Representative

1404 N. Harriman St. Appleton, WI 54911

Thomas J. Walsh, Judge

Brown County Courthouse 100 South Jefferson Street

P.O. Box 23600

Green Bay, WI 54305-3600

Vice Chair Lena Taylor, Senator

1518 West Capitol Milwaukee, WI 53206

Tony Bickel, President

Wisconsin Fathers for Children and Families P.O. Box 1742

Madison, WI 53701

Mark Fremgen, Commissioner

Dane County Circuit Court 215 S. Hamilton St.

Madison, WI 53703

Tiffany Highstrom, Attorney

StaffordRosenbaum

222 West Washington Avenue, Suite 900

P.O. Box 1784

Madison, WI 53701-1784

Chris Kapenga, Senator

N9W31035 Concord Ct. Delafield, WI 53018

James Sullivan, Director

Milwaukee County Child Support Services

Courthouse, Room 101 901 North 9th St.

Milwaukee, WI 53233

STUDY ASSIGNMENT: The study committee is directed to review the standards under current law for determining periods of physical placement and child support obligations. The committee may consider alternatives to current law concerning physical placement, including a rebuttable presumption that equal placement is in the child's best interest. The committee may also consider whether the current standard for determining child support adequately and equitably provides for the support of children and alternative models for determining child support obligations.

13 MEMBERS: 3 Representatives; 2 Senators; and 8 Public Members.

LEGISLATIVE COUNCIL STAFF: Rachel Letzing, Principal Attorney; Margit Kelley, Senior Staff Attorney; and Kelly Mautz, Support Staff.

Legislative Council Study Committee on Direct Primary Care

Chair Alberta Darling, Senator

1325 West Dean Road River Hills, WI 53217

Greg Banaszynski

W7709 Koshkonong Lake Road Fort Atkinson, WI 53538

Mary Felzkowski, Representative

W4587 County Rd. S Apt. A

Irma, WI 54442

LaTonya Johnson, Senator

2363 N. 54th St.

Milwaukee, WI 53707

Maureen McNally

Froedtert Health 9200 West Wisconsin Avenue Wauwatosa, WI 53213

Mark Rakowski, Vice President

Children's Community Health Plan Children's Hospital of WI 9000 W. Wisconsin Avenue

Milwaukee, WI 53226

Dr. Elizabeth Trowbridge

UW School of Medicine and Public Health 2828 Marshal Court, Suite 100

Madison, WI 53705

Vice Chair John Nygren, Representative

Room 309 East, State Capitol

P.O. Box 8953

Madison, WI 53708

Coreen Dicus-Johnson, President/CEO

Network Health 1570 Midway Place

Menasha, WI 54952

Dr. Suzanne Gehl

The Jacob House 385 Williamstowne, Suite 101

Delafield, WI 53018

Debra Kolste, Representative

4105 Parkview Dr.

Janesville, WI 53546

Tim Murray, CEO

Solstice Health

1020 Oconomowoc Parkway, Suite B

Oconomowoc, WI 53066

Tom Tiffany, Senator

4973 Willow Dam Road Hazelhurst, WI 54531

Bob Van Meeteren, President/CEO

Reedsburg Area Medical Center 2000 North Dewey Avenue

Reedsburg, WI 53959

STUDY ASSIGNMENT: The study committee is directed to review the emergence of "direct primary care" as a healthcare delivery option and assess its potential impact on the healthcare delivery system and health outcomes in the state. The committee shall recommend legislation regarding requirements for direct primary care arrangements in the private market. In addition, the committee is directed to review options for incorporation of direct primary care arrangements into the fee-for-service and managed-care parts of the Medical Assistance (MA) program and assess its potential impact on the functionality, efficiency, and effectiveness of service delivery and health outcomes in both parts of the MA program. The committee shall recommend legislation regarding a direct primary care pilot in the MA program, including an evaluation of the impact of the pilot on service delivery and health outcomes for participating individuals and the MA program as a whole.

14 MEMBERS: 3 Representatives; 3 Senators; and 8 Public Members.

<u>LEGISLATIVE COUNCIL STAFF</u>: Brian Larson and Andrea Brauer, Staff Attorneys; and Julie Learned, Support Staff.

Legislative Council Study Committee on the Identification and Management of Dyslexia

Chair Bob Kulp, Representative

C4098 Pauline Ln. Stratford, WI 54484

Nancy Dressel, Instructional

Coach/Dyslexic/Parent Hudson School District 985 198th Ave. Somerset, WI 54025

Donna Hejtmanek, Harshaw Reading Specialist

Northland Pines School District 8443 Little Horsehead Hill Rd. Harshaw, WI 54529

Mike Rohrkaste, Representative

1417 Mahler Blvd. Neenah, WI 54956

Tom Tiffany, Senator

4973 Willow Dam Rd. Hazelhurst, WI 54531

Michael Weber, Superintendent Port Washington-Saukville School District 100 West Monroe St.

Port Washington, WI 53074

Vice Chair Patty Schachtner, Senator

1064 210th Ave. Somerset, WI 54025

Dr. Steven Dykstra, Psychologist

Milwaukee County 2342 North 61st St. Wauwatosa, WI 53213

Ann Malone, Retired Director Children's Dyslexia Center-Madison Board Member, IDA-WI Branch 3437 Edgehill Pkwy. Madison, WI 53705

Amanda Stuck, Representative

1404 N. Harriman St. Appleton, WI 54911

Dr. Brenda Warren, Pediatrician

School Board President, Green Bay Area School District

1685 MacArthur St. Green Bay, WI 54301

STUDY ASSIGNMENT: The study committee is directed to review current screening, identification, school intervention, and treatment protocols for dyslexia in K-12 schools; to examine the effects of current state statutes and regulations on literacy outcomes for students with dyslexia; and to evaluate the effects of dyslexia on literacy outcomes in the state. The committee shall study recent research on evidence-based instructional techniques for students with dyslexia; determine the components and costs of successful dyslexia education practices and laws in other states; and identify institutional obstacles to academic attainment for these students. The committee shall consider legislation to implement screening for characteristics of dyslexia in early grades; to ensure that reading instruction and intervention practices incorporate relevant research findings from the University of Wisconsin; to improve the partnership between parents, educators, counselors, and others on early identification and effective interventions for dyslexic learners; and to enhance statewide access to updated resources and training on dyslexic education.

11 MEMBERS: 3 Representatives; 2 Senators; and 6 Public Members.

<u>LEGISLATIVE COUNCIL STAFF</u>: Jessica Ozalp, Senior Staff Attorney; Julia Norsetter, Staff Attorney; and Tracey Young, Support Staff.

Legislative Council Study Committee on the Investment and Use of the School Trust Funds

Chair Terry Katsma, Representative

705 Erie Avenue Oostburg, WI 53070

Kim Bannigan 516 Kent Road Poynette, WI 53955

Stephen Eager 228 West Main Street Evansville, WI 53536

Steve O'Malley 213 Pearl Street, #1 La Crosse, WI 54601

Don Vruwink, Representative 24 West Ash Lane Milton, WI 53563

Vice Chair Lena Taylor, Senator

1518 West Capitol Milwaukee, WI 53206

Jerry Derr

1595 County Hwy. V Columbus, WI 53925

Don Merkes, Mayor City of Menasha 100 Main Street, Suite 200 Menasha, WI 54952

Duey Stroebel, Senator 2428 Covered Bridge Road Saukville, WI 53080

<u>STUDY ASSIGNMENT</u>: The study committee is directed to review the statutes governing the investment of the trust funds administered by the Board of Commissioners of Public Lands (BCPL), including the loan programs administered by BCPL. The committee shall assess whether current statutes adequately ensure the effective investment and appropriate use of the proceeds of the funds, and recommend legislation for necessary changes.

9 MEMBERS: 2 Representatives; 2 Senators; and 5 Public Members.

<u>LEGISLATIVE COUNCIL STAFF</u>: Rachel Snyder and Zach Ramirez, Staff Attorneys; and Julie Learned, Support Staff.

Law Revision Committee

Representative Jim Ott, **Co-Chair**Room 317 North, State Capitol

Senator Van Wanggaard, **Co-Chair**Room 313 South, State Capitol

Representative Tyler August

Room 119 West, State Capitol

Senator Devin LeMahieu

Room 409 South, State Capitol

Representative Gary Hebl Representative Daniel Riemer Room 120 North, State Capitol Room 122 North, State Capitol

Senator Fred Risser Senator Jeff Smith

Room 130 South, State Capitol Room 22 South, State Capitol

STUDY ASSIGNMENT: The committee is directed, pursuant to s. 13.83(1), Stats., to (a) review remedial legislation based on nonsubstantive changes recommended by agencies; (b) review court decisions and opinions of the Attorney General which state that a statute is unconstitutional, ambiguous or otherwise in need of revision; (c) review Legislative Reference Bureau correction bills; (d) review suggestions for major codifications and revisions of the statutes; and (e) perform functions related to interstate compacts and agreements.

8 MEMBERS: 4 Senators and 4 Representatives.

<u>LEGISLATIVE COUNCIL STAFF</u>: Katie Bender-Olson, Senior Staff Attorney, and Tracey Young, Support Staff.

Legislative Council Study Committee on Minor Guardianships

Chair Jim Steineke, Representative Room 115 West, State Capitol

Madison, WI 53708

Susan Conwell, Executive Director Kids Matter, Inc. 1850 N. Dr. Martin Luther King Drive Suite 202 Milwaukee, WI 53212

Debra Kolste, Representative 4105 Parkview Dr. Janesville, WI 53546

Theresa Roetter, Attorney Annen Roetter 211 S. Paterson St., Ste. 340 Madison, WI 53703

Carrie Schneider, Judge Outagamie County Circuit Court, Branch V 320 S. Walnut St. Appleton, WI 54911

Gretchen Viney, Director Lawyering Skills Program University of Wisconsin Law School 975 Bascom Mall Madison, WI 53706-1399 **Vice Chair LaTonya Johnson**, Senator 2363 N. 54th St.
Milwaukee, WI 53707

Megan DeVore, Corporation Counsel La Crosse County 212 Sixth Street North, Room 2400 La Crosse, WI 54601-3200

Henry J. Plum, Attorney Park Crest Center, Suite 206 2665 South Moorland Road New Berlin, WI 53151

Michael Rosborough, Judge 2439 Trevor Way Madison, WI 53719-4663

Paul Tittl, Representative 2229 Rheaume Rd. Manitowoc, WI 54220

<u>STUDY ASSIGNMENT</u>: The study committee is directed to examine ch. 54, Stats., concerning guardianship of minors and adults, and recommend legislation that creates procedures specific to guardianship of a minor. The committee may consider whether any new provisions should apply to guardianship of a minor's person, estate, or both

11 MEMBERS: 3 Representatives; 1 Senator; and 7 Public Members.

<u>LEGISLATIVE COUNCIL STAFF</u>: Steven McCarthy and Amber Otis, Staff Attorneys; and Kelly Mautz, Support Staff.

Legislative Council Study Committee on Property Tax Assessment Practices

Chair Luther Olsen, Senator

1023 Thomas St. Ripon, WI 54971

Ed Catani, Pewaukee Director Pharmacy and Retail Operations, Walgreens W285N3416 Conservancy Dr.

Pewaukee, WI 53072

Robert Cowles, Senator 300 W. St. Joseph St., Unit 23 Green Bay, WI 54301

Jeff Hoffm an, Milwaukee Principal Cushman & Wakefield/The Boerke Co. 731 N. Jackson St., Ste. 700 Milwaukee, WI 53202

Jeff Nooyen, Appleton County Board Chair Outagamie County 1754 N. Winesap Ln. Appleton, WI 54914

Amy Seibel, Attorney Seibel Law Office 11518 N. Port Washington Rd., Ste. 103 Mequon, WI 53092 Vice Chair Scott Allen, Representative

S42 W25312 Dale Dr. Waukesha, WI 53189

Dave Considine, Representative N6194 Breezy Hill Rd. Baraboo, WI 53913

Rick Gundrum, Representative 301 Winter Ln. Slinger, WI 53086

Don Millis

Reinhart Boerner Van Deuren 22 E. Mifflin St., Ste. 700 Madison, WI 53703

Janis Ringhand, Senator 412 Fowler Cir. Evansville, WI 53536

Rocco Vita, Pleasant Prairie Director of Assessment Services Village of Pleasant Prairie 9915 39th Ave. Pleasant Prairie, WI 53158

STUDY ASSIGNMENT: The study committee is directed to review current property tax assessment practices, including the review of statutory, administrative, and judicial directives on assessment practices and the consistency of assessment practices throughout the state. Following its review, the committee shall recommend legislation to revise and clarify property tax assessment practices, including recommendations regarding the role of comparable sales and market segments in assessments and the assessment of leased property.

12 MEMBERS: 3 Representatives; 3 Senators; and 6 Public Members.

 $\underline{\textbf{LEGISLATIVE}\,\textbf{COUNCIL}\,\,\textbf{STAFF}}\text{: Scott}\,\textbf{Grosz}, \textbf{Principal}\,\textbf{Attorney}; \textbf{Anna}\,\textbf{Henning}, \textbf{Senior}\,\textbf{Staff}\,\textbf{Attorney}; \textbf{and}\,\,\textbf{Tracey}\,\textbf{Young}, \textbf{Support}\,\textbf{Staff}.$

Legislative Council Special Committee on State-Tribal Relations

Chair Jeffrey Mursau, Representative

4 Oak Street Crivitz, WI 54114

Dee Ann Allen

Lac du Flambeau Band of Lake Superior Chippewa Indians P.O. Box 67

Lac du Flambeau, WI 54538

Mason, WI 54856

Janet Bewley, Senator 60995 Pike River Road

Wilfrid Cleveland, President

Ho-Chunk Nation W9814 Airport Rd. P.O. Box 667

Black River Falls, WI 54615

Ned Daniels, Jr., Chairman

Forest County Potawatomi Community P.O. Box 340 Crandon, WI 54520

James Edming, Representative

N4998 Edming Road Glen Flora, WI 54526

Chris McGeshick, Chairman

Sokaogon Chippewa Community 3160 Indian Route 10 Crandon, WI 54520

Jerry Petrowski, Senator

7 20 North 136th Avenue Marathon, WI 54448

Lena Taylor, Senator

Room 5 South State Capitol P.O. Box 7 882 Madison, WI 53707-7882 Vice Chair Kathleen Vinehout, Senator

W1490 Cesler Valley Road Alma, WI 54610

Gary Besaw, Tribal Legislator Menominee Indian Tribe of Wisconsin

P.O. Box 910 Keshena, WI 54135

Tim Carpenter, Senator 2957 South 38th Street

Milwaukee, WI 53215

Dave Considine, Representative

N6194 Breezy Hill Road Baraboo, WI 53913

Michael Decorah, Senior Intergovernmental Affairs

Specialist

St. Croix Chippewa Indians of Wisconsin

St. Croix Tribal Center 24663 Angeline Ave. Webster, WI 54893

Shannon Holsey, President

Stockbridge-Munsee Community N8476 Moh He Con Nuck Rd.

Bowler, WI 54416

Richard Peterson, Chairman

Red Cliff Band of Lake Superior Chippewa Indians 88385 Pike Road, Highway 13

88385 Pike Road, Highway 13 Bayfield, WI 54814

Lisa Summers, Secretary

Oneida Nation

P.O. Box 365 Oneida, WI 54155

Jason Weaver, Secretary

Lac Courte Oreilles Tribal Governing Board

13394 West Trepania Road

Hayward, WI 54843

<u>STUDY ASSIGNMENT</u>: The special committee is directed to study issues relating to American Indians and the American Indian tribes and bands in this state and develop specific recommendations and legislative proposals relating to these issues. [s. 13.83 (3), Stats.]

16 MEMBERS: 3 Representatives; 3 Senators; and 10 Public Members.

<u>LEGISLATIVE COUNCIL STAFF</u>: David Moore, Senior Staff Attorney, Jessica Ozalp, Staff Attorney, and Julie Learned, Support Staff.

Legislative Council's Special Committee on State-Tribal Relations Technical Advisory Committee

TOM BELLAVIA **Department of Justice**Assistant Attorney General
17 W. Main St., Rm. 7 07
INTER-D

DAVIDO'CONNOR **Department of Public Instruction**125 South Webster St., 4th Flr.

INTER-D

ANDREW EVENSON **Department of Workforce Development**201 East Washington Ave., Rm. A300

INTER-D

GAIL NAHWAHQUAW **Department of Health Services**1 West Wilson St., Rm. 618
INTER-D

KELLY JACKSON **Department of Transportation**4802 Sheboygan Avenue
P.O. Box 7 965

Madison, WI 53707-3761
INTER-D

MICHELE ALLNESS **Department of Natural Resources**101 South Webster LS/5

INTER-D

THOMAS D. OURADA **Department of Revenue**2135 Rimrock Rd., #624A
INTER-D

STEPHANIE LOZANO

Department of Children and Families
201 East Washington Avenue
Second Floor
INTER-D

ASSIGNMENT: Established pursuant to s. 13.83 (3) (f), Stats., to assist the Special Committee on State-Tribal Relations in performing its statutory functions.

8 MEMBERS: One representative designated by the following departments: Children and Families; Health Services; Justice; Natural Resources; Public Instruction; Revenue; Transportation; and Workforce Development.

Legislative Council Study Committee on the Use of Police Body Cameras

Chair Patrick Testin, Senator 5369 Fairview Drive Stevens Point, WI 54482

Kevin Croninger, District Attorney Monroe County Courthouse 112 South Court Street, Room 2400 Sparta, WI 54656

James Friedman, Attorney Godfrey & Kahn, S.C. 1 East Main Street, Suite 500 Madison, WI 53703

Mike Kass, Chief of Police Brown Deer Police Department 4800 West Green Brook Drive Brown Deer, WI 53223

Chris Larson, Senator 3233 South Herman Street Milwaukee, WI 53207

Vice Chair Chris Taylor, Representative Madison, WI 53704

Catherine Dorl, Attorney Manager Office of the State Public Defender 17 S. Fairchild, 2nd Floor P.O. Box 7 923 Madison, WI 53707

Ben Hart, News Director WISN-TV 759 N. 19th Street Milwaukee, WI 53233

Jeff Klatt, Captain St. Croix County Sheriff's Office 1101 Carmichael Road Hudson, WI 54016

John Spiros, Representative 1406 E. Fillmore Marshfield, WI 54449

<u>STUDY ASSIGNMENT</u>: The study committee is directed to review law enforcement policies regarding the use of body cameras and recommend legislation to establish uniform procedures regarding the retention and release of body camera video for state and local law enforcement agencies.

10 MEMBERS: 2 Representatives; 2 Senators; and 6 Public Members.

<u>LEGISLATIVE COUNCIL STAFF</u>: Dan Schmidt, Principal Analyst; Steve McCarthy and Ethan Lauer, Staff Attorneys; and Miranda Machgan, Support Staff.